
CITY COUNCIL MEETING 
COUNCIL CHAMBERS, 33 SOUTH MAIN STREET, COLFAX, CA 

 

MAYOR WILL STOCKWIN  MAYOR PRO TEM MARNIE MENDOZA 

COUNCILMEMBERS  STEVE HARVEY  KIM DOUGLASS  

 
REGULAR MEETING AGENDA 

March 14, 2018 

Regular Session 7:00 PM 
 

 Colfax City Council Meetings are ADA compliant. If you need special assistance to 
participate in this meeting, please contact the City Clerk at (530) 346-2313 at least 
72 hours prior to make arrangements for ensuring your accessibility. 

March 14, 2018 

 
Page 1 of 2  

 

 

1. CALL TO  ORD ER  

1A. Call Open Session to Order 

1B. Pledge of Allegiance 

1C. Roll Call 

1D. Approval of Agenda Order 
This is the time for changes to the agenda to be considered including removal, postponement, or change to the agenda sequence. 

RECOMMENDED ACTION: By motion, accept the agenda as presented  or amended. 

 

2. PRESEN TATION  

2A. Union Pacific Railroad 

Francis Castillo, Director, Public Affairs 

 

3. CON SEN T CALEN D AR 
Matters on the Consent Agenda are routine in nature and will be approved by one blanket motion with a Council vote. No 

discussion of these items ensues unless specific items are pulled for discussion and separate action.  If you wish to have an  item 

pulled from the Consent Agenda for discussion, please notify the Mayor. 

RECOMMENDED ACTION:  Approve Consent Calendar 

3A. Minutes – Regular meeting February 28, 2018 

 Recommendation:  Approve the Minutes of the Regular Meeting of February 28, 2018. 

3B. Easements for Village Oak subdivision development 

Recommendation:  Adopt Resolution 16-2018 authorizing acceptance of the Emergency 

Vehicle Access Easement, the Sewer Easement and  the Public Utility Easement between 

the City of Colfax and  the Village Oaks Community, LLC, Sierra Oaks Estates, LLC, and  

Pinetop Properties, LLC. 

3C. Sierra Vista Community Center Donation  

Recommendation:  Authorize donating $50 to organizers of the Chocolate, Wine and  Art 

Indulgence event at Sierra Vista Community Center from the Council budget for 

Economic Development – Event Support. 

 

4. PUBLIC COMMEN T 
Members of the audience are permitted to address the Council on matters of concern to the public within the subject matter 

jurisdiction of the City Council that are not listed on this agenda.  Please make your comments as brief as possible; not to exceed 

three (3) minutes in length.  The Council cannot act on items not included on this agenda; however, if action is required it will be 

referred to staff. 

 

 

 

 



 

 Colfax City Council Meetings are ADA compliant. If you need special assistance to 
participate in this meeting, please contact the City Clerk at (530) 346-2313 at least 
72 hours prior to make arrangements for ensuring your accessibility. 

March 14, 2018 

 
Page 2 of 2  

 

5. COUN CIL, STAFF AN D  OTHER REPORTS 
The purpose of these reports is to provide information to the Council and public on projects, programs, and issues discussed at 

committee meetings and other items of Colfax related information. No decisions will be made on these issues. If a member of t he 

Council prefers formal action be taken on any committee reports or other information, the issue will be placed on a future Council 

meeting agenda. 

5A. Committee Reports and Colfax Informational Items - All Councilmembers 

5B. City Operations Update – City staff 

5C. Additional Reports – Agency partners 

 

6. COUN CIL BUSIN ESS 

6A. Agreement with Vision Quest for Information Technology Services 

 Staff Presentation:  Wes Heathcock, City Manager 

 Recommendation:  Adopt Resolution 17-2018 authorizing the City Manager to enter 

into a professional services agreement with Vision Quest Information Solutions Inc 

for a three year term with an option to renew for an additional two years 

 

7. GOOD OF THE ORDER - INFORMAL COUNCIL STATEMENTS REGARDING THE 

BUSINESS OF THE CITY 
Informal observation reports and inquiries regarding the business of the City may be presented by Council members under this 

agenda item or requests for placement of items of interest on a future agenda.  No action will be taken. 
 

8. AD JOURN MEN T 
 

 

I, Lorraine Cassidy, City Clerk for the City of Colfax declare that this agenda was posted   

at Colfax City Hall and the Colfax Post Office. The agenda is also available on the City website at www.Colfax-ca.gov.  

 

 

 

 

 
 

 

 

 

Administrative Remedies must be exhausted  prior to action being initiated  in a court of law.  If you challenge City Council action 

in court, you may be limited  to raising only those issues you or someone else raised  at a public hearing described  in this 

notice/ agenda, or in written correspondence delivered  to the City Clerk of the City of Colfax at, or prior to, said  public hearing. 

 

http://www.colfax-ca.gov/


City of Colfax 1 
City Council Minutes February 28, 2018 
 

6A.      City of Colfax 
    City Council Minutes 
    Regular Meeting of Wednesday, February 28, 2018 
    City Hall Council Chambers 
    33 S. Main Street, Colfax CA 
 

 

 

1 OPEN SESSION 
1A. Call to Order 

Mayor Stockwin called the Meeting to order at 7:00PM. 
1B. Pledge of Allegiance 

Sergeant Ty Conners, Colfax Sub-station Commander, led the Pledge of Allegiance. 
1C. Roll Call 

Council members present:  Douglass, Harvey, Mendoza, Stockwin 
1D. Approval of Agenda Order 

 

On a motion by Councilmember Harvey, seconded by Councilmember Douglass, the City Council 
approved the agenda order. 
AYES:  Douglass, Harvey, Mendoza, Stockwin 
 

2 CONSENT CALENDAR 
2A. Minutes - Regular Meeting February 14, 2018 

Recommendation:  Approve the Minutes of the Regular Meeting of February 14, 2018. 
2B. Cash Summary Report – January, 2018  

Recommendation:  Accept and file. 
2C. First Amendment to the Sierra Oaks Estates/Village Oaks Reimbursement 

Agreement 
Recommendation:  Adopt Resolution 09-2018 approving the First Amendment to the 
Reimbursement Agreement for the Sierra Oaks Estates/Village Oaks Project. 

2D. Staffing Adjustments  
Recommendation:  Adopt Resolution 10-2018 approving staffing adjustment to eliminate 
the Accounting Assistant position and revise the Accounting Technician position. 
 

On a motion by Councilmember Harvey, seconded by Mayor Pro Tem Mendoza, Council 
approved the Consent Calendar. 
AYES:  Douglass, Harvey, Mendoza, Stockwin 
 

3 PUBLIC COMMENT 
There was no public comment.   

 

4 COUNCIL, STAFF, AND OTHER REPORTS 
4A. Committee Reports and Colfax Informational Items – All Councilmembers 

Councilmember Harvey 
 Councilmember Harvey represented the City on the Placer County Transportation 

Planning Agency board. 
 
 
 



City of Colfax 2 
City Council Minutes February 28, 2018 
 

Councilmember Douglass 
 Councilmember Douglass attended the 2nd Wednesday Meeting with Supervisor 

Montgomery.  
 He represented the City on the SACOG board, the Sierra Vista Community Center 

board and Pioneer Energy board. 
Mayor Pro Tem Mendoza 

 Mayor Pro Tem Mendoza complimented City staff and first responders for their 
quick response to the train derailment last week. 

Mayor Stockwin 
 Mayor Stockwin spoke with Francisco Castillo from Union Pacific regarding the 

train derailment.  He has asked Mr. Castillo to give a presentation to Council 
regarding the train derailment and general railroad safety. 

 He represented the City at the Fire Safe Council meeting. 
 

4B. City Operations – City Staff 
City Manager Heathcock 

 City Manager Heathcock shared	 the	 public	 can	 contact	 Placer	 County	 Sheriff’s	
Department if they need shelter during the upcoming storms to request the Sierra 
Vista Community Center open as a warming center.  Staff will be running 
snowplows during snow events. 

 Staff has sent the owner of the historic hotel a Notice of Intent to Lien the property. 
 

4C. Additional Reports – Agency Partners 
Sergeant Ty Conners, Placer County Sheriff Office Colfax Substation Commander 

 Sergeant Conners informed Council the deputies have ruled out the suspects in the 
break-in at the Corp Yard.  Remember to catalogue your tools and equipment with 
serial numbers or mark your property for recovery in the event of a robbery. 

 He is coordinating another active shooter drill at the high school to train new staff. 
 On behalf of the Green Machine, Sergeant Conners reminded everyone to purchase 

tickets for the Crab Feed fundraiser which will be March 10, 2018 at the Sierra 
Vista Community Center. 

Officer Chris Nave, California Highway Patrol (CHP) Gold Run Public Information Officer 
 Officer Nave stated the winter safety event at Bass Pro Shops was successful, with 

over 100 attending. 
 CHP will be hosting a Winter Driving Safety Clinic at the Gold Run Rest Stop this 

Friday. 
Chief Brian Eagan, Colfax Fire Department Battalion Chief 

 Chief Eagan stated the Fire Department took the lead as first responders during 
the train derailment episode in downtown Colfax. 

 He is working with the volunteers to put together purchase orders for the $37,000 
matching funds received from the VFA Grant through Cal Fire. 

 The vegetation clean-up at the Wastewater Treatment Plant and Landfill should 
commence in late April. 

Councilmember Harvey thanked Chief Eagan for following up on the mastication of City 
properties.  It is a very important step for town safety. 
 
 

2 of 6



City of Colfax 3 
City Council Minutes February 28, 2018 
 

 Frank Klein, President Colfax Area Chamber of Commerce  
 Mr. Klein invited Council and Chamber members to attend the March 7, 2018 

annual chamber luncheon. 
 Sharon Conners, Sierra Vista Community Center  

 Ms. Conners highlighted the events on the Sierra Vista Community Center calendar. 
 She handed out the flyer for the Chocolate, Wine and, Art Indulgence which will be 

hosted on April 28, 2018 at 6PM.  Tickets are $15. 
 She requested Council consider donating $50 to use towards purchase of a banner 

to advertise the annual Chocolate, Wine and, Art Indulgence. 
Council agreed to place this on the next agenda. 

Fred Abbott, City of Colfax Event Liaison  
 Mr.	Abbott	announced	he	will	be	coordinating	this	year’s	Railroad	Days	event	on	

September 15 and 16, 2018.  He is proposing a Spaghetti Feed on the 15th and a 
Pancake Breakfast on the 16th as part of the weekend activities.  He will need 
Volunteers for the event, particularly for overnight security. 

 

5 PUBLIC HEARING 
5A. Second reading and possible adoption of an ordinance Establishing Commercial 

Cannabis Regulations. 
 Staff Presentation:  Alfred	A.	“Mick”	Cabral,	City	Attorney 
 Recommendation:  Read the proposed ordinance by title only, waive the second reading, 
conduct a public hearing and consider adopting Ordinance 536 establishing Commercial 
Cannabis Regulations to be effective in 30 days. 

5B. Second reading and possible adoption of an ordinance Colfax Municipal Code 
Chapter 17.162. 

 Staff Presentation:  Alfred	A.	“Mick”	Cabral,	City	Attorney 
 Recommendation:  Read the proposed ordinance by title only, waive the second reading, 
conduct a public hearing and consider adopting Ordinance 535 Amending Municipal Code 
Chapter 17.162 pertaining to Commercial Cannabis Regulations, to be effective in 30 days. 
 

Mayor Stockwin opened the public hearing for both ordinances at 7:36PM. 
 

City Attorney Cabral explained the purpose of the ordinances is to develop comprehensive 
regulations for commercial cannabis activities within the City.  Ordinance 536 sets forth the 
regulations and Ordinance 535 moves the regulatory component from Chapter 17 of the 
Municipal Code while keeping the land use component of cultivation in Chapter 17.  He 
complimented the ad hoc Cannabis Committee for doing a very thorough job. 
 

There were no questions or comments from Council. 
 

Rich Miller, an area resident, asked several specific questions regarding employee background 
checks, unannounced inspections, renewal timing and testing procedures. 
Jim Dion, business owner, expressed concerns about the timing for the renewal process. 
Council and staff discussed each question in turn and determined the ordinances were 
appropriate as written.  If changes to the ordinance become necessary, Council can revisit the 
ordinances in the future. 
 

Mayor Stockwin closed the public hearing at 8:00PM. 
 

3 of 6



City of Colfax 4 
City Council Minutes February 28, 2018 
 

On a motion by Mayor Pro Tem Mendoza, seconded by Councilmember Douglass, Council waived 
the second reading and adopted Ordinance 536 establishing Commercial Cannabis Regulations 
to be effective in 30 days. 
AYES:  Douglass, Mendoza, Stockwin 
NOES:  Harvey 
 

On a motion by Mayor Pro Tem Mendoza, seconded by Councilmember Douglass, Council waived 
the second reading and adopted Ordinance 535 Amending Municipal Code Chapter 17.162 
Pertaining to Cannabis Regulations, to be effective in 30 days. 
AYES:  Douglass, Harvey, Mendoza, Stockwin 
Councilmember Harvey mentioned he will vote yes on ordinances or resolutions only if he feels 
they are not in conflict with Federal Law.  
 

6 COUNCIL BUSINESS 
6A.  Agreements for Federal Transportation Funds and the S. Auburn St. and I-80 

 Roundabout Project  
 Staff Presentation:  Dane Schilling, City Engineer 
 Recommendation:  Adopt Resolution 11-2018 authorizing the City Manager to execute a 
Master Agreement Administering Agency-State Agreements for Federal-Aid Projects, a Program 
Supplement Agreement, and Finance Letters for the S. Auburn St. and I-80 Roundabout Project. 
 

City Engineer Schilling explained the City is required to have two agreements in place in order to 
receive federal and state funds.  The first is an overarching Master Agreement and the second is 
project specific to acknowledge the Roundabout Project funds granted to the City for the project.  
These are basically a formality required by the State to administer the funding.  Also included in 
this resolution is authorization for the City Manager to communicate with the State regarding the 
project on behalf of the City. 
 

Councilmember Harvey stated it is imperative the City have an agreement in writing with the 
developer regarding his contribution to the project before Council moves beyond this point.  
Mayor	Stockwin	supported	Councilmember	Harvey’s	statement.		 
Staff assured Council they have communicated this clearly to the developer and are meeting with 
them again this week to work out the details. 
 

On a motion by Councilmember Harvey, seconded by Mayor Pro Tem Mendoza, Council adopted 
Resolution 11-2018 authorizing the City Manager to execute a Master Agreement Administering 
Agency-State Agreements for Federal-Aid Projects, a Program Supplement Agreement, and 
Finance Letters for the S. Auburn St. and I-80 Roundabout Project. 
AYES:  Douglass, Harvey, Mendoza, Stockwin 
 

6B.  Adopt resolutions establishing the application process, fees and background check 
 for commercial cannabis businesses. 

 Staff Presentation:  Alfred	A.	“Mick”	Cabral,	City	Attorney 
 Recommendation:  1) Adopt Resolution 12-2018 approving the procedures to operate a 
commercial cannabis business in Colfax;  2) Adopt Resolution 13-2018 establishing and adopting 
fees to process applications for Commercial Cannabis Activity Permits.  3) Adopt Resolution 14-
2018 authorizing access to state and federal level Summary Criminal History Information for 
employment, licensing or certification purposes in order to implement Colfax Municipal Code 
Chapter 5.32 pertaining to Commercial Cannabis Regulation. 

4 of 6



City of Colfax 5 
City Council Minutes February 28, 2018 
 

City Attorney Cabral explained the purposes of the three resolutions presented in this item.  
Resolution 12-2018 outlines a comprehensive process for application and approval of potential 
cannabis retailers.  Resolution 13-2018 sets the application fees to be revenue neutral for the 
City’s	 administration	of	 the	process.	 	Resolution	14-2018 authorizes the City to access federal 
information for background checks. 
City Manager Heathcock explained this is the next step required of Ordinance 536. 
 

Mayor Stockwin expressed concern about the language in the guidelines pertaining to requiring 
a living wage for employees. 
Council and staff discussed the point and determined it is not necessary to include in the 
guidelines.  They agreed to amend the regulations by striking the bullet point in the guidelines 
regarding living wages. 
 

Sharon Conners, local resident, asked who would be paying for the background checks and was 
assured these fees will not come from City general funds. 
Mr. Miller asked when the application period will begin for cannabis retailers and learned it will 
be open on April 2, 2018. 
 

On a motion by Mayor Pro Tem Mendoza, seconded by Councilmember Douglass, Council 
adopted Resolution 12-2018 approving the procedures to operate a commercial cannabis 
business in Colfax as amended. 
AYES:  Douglass, Mendoza, Stockwin 
NOES:  Harvey 
 

On a motion by Mayor Pro Tem Mendoza, seconded by Councilmember Douglass, Council 
adopted Resolution 13-2018 approving establishing and adopting fees to process applications 
for Commercial Cannabis Activity permits. 
AYES:  Douglass, Mendoza, Stockwin 
NOES:  Harvey 
 

On a motion by Mayor Pro Tem Mendoza, seconded by Councilmember Douglass, Council 
adopted Resolution 14-2018 authorizing access to State and Federal level Summary Criminal 
History Information for employment, licensing or certification purposes in order to implement 
Colfax Municipal Code Chapter 5.32 pertaining to Commercial Cannabis Regulation. 
AYES:  Douglass, Harvey, Mendoza, Stockwin 
 

6C. Consolidation of the November 6, 2018 election and request for election services by 
the County Clerk 
Staff Presentation:  Lorraine Cassidy, City Clerk 
Recommendation:  Adopt Resolution 15-2018: declaring an election to be held in the City 
of Colfax jurisdiction on November 6, 2018; requesting the Placer County Board of 
Supervisors to consolidate this election with any other election conducted on said date; 
and requesting election services by the County Clerk. 
 

City Clerk Cassidy explained this resolution is normally presented to Council in May or June, but 
staff is bringing it to Council now due to the vacancy on Council created by the resignation of 
Tony Hesch. 
City Attorney Cabral clarified this is the last meeting in which the election can be called to fill the 
vacancy. 

5 of 6



City of Colfax 6 
City Council Minutes February 28, 2018 
 

There was no comment by Council or the public. 
 

On a motion by Councilmember Harvey, seconded by Mayor Pro Tem Mendoza, Council adopted 
Resolution 15-2018: declaring an election to be held in the City of Colfax jurisdiction on 
November 6, 2018; requesting the Placer County Board of Supervisors to consolidate this 
election with any other election conducted on said date; and requesting election services by the 
County Clerk. 
AYES:  Douglass, Harvey, Mendoza, Stockwin 
 

6D. Mid-year Budget Review – Fiscal Year 2017-2018 
Staff Presentation:  Laurie Van Groningen, Finance Director 
Recommendation:  Review and accept the Mid-year Budget Report FY2017-2018. 
 

Finance Director Van Groningen explained the report includes a thorough evaluation of each 
account and the projected expenses and revenues based on the financial activity of the City 
between July 2017 and December 2017.  This analysis will serve as the baseline for building the 
two year budget which staff will immediately begin to develop for a Council workshop and 
approval before the end of June this year.  She highlighted the significant details of the staff 
report noting that overall City funds are $82,000 better than projected. 
 

Council asked a few question and there was no public comment. 
 

On a motion by Councilmember Harvey, seconded by Mayor Pro Tem Mendoza, Council accepted 
the Mid-year Budget Report for FY2017-2018. 
AYES:  Douglass, Harvey, Mendoza, Stockwin 
 

7 GOOD OF THE ORDER – INFORMAL COUNCIL STATEMENTS REGARDING THE 

BUSINESS OF THE CITY 
Councilmember Douglass asked City Attorney Cabral if it is legal to smoke marijuana in public.  It 
is not. 
 

Councilmember Harvey stated the potholes on the highways near Colfax are indicative of the 
State’s	prioritization	of	SB1	funds.		In	contrast,	San	Diego	has	been	granted	millions	of	dollars	to	
upgrade their public transit facilities. 
 

Mayor Stockwin remarked that the City will experience winter tonight but spring will be as early 
as next week! 
 

8 ADJOURNMENT 
 

As there was no further business on the agenda, Mayor Stockwin adjourned the meeting at 
8:39PM. 

 

Respectfully submitted to City Council this 14th day of March, 2018 
 

6 of 6









Exhibit A 4 of 35
ITEM 3B



5 of 35
ITEM 3B







8 of 35
ITEM 3B



9 of 35
ITEM 3B



10 of 35
ITEM 3B



CERTIFICATE OF ACCEPTANCE 
(Government Code 27281) 

 
 
 
 
This is to certify that the City Council of the City of Colfax, State of California, on the 

 

____ day of _________________ 2018, by resolution n o . __________  regularly passed and 

entered in the minutes of said Council, did hereby accept, the interest in real property conveyed 

by the grant of easement dated _____________________, granted by_____________________, 

to the City of Colfax, a municipal corporation in the County of Placer, State of California and the 

grantee consents to recordation thereof by its duly authorized officer. 

 

Dated: ______________ 

 

By: _______________________________________ 

 Wes Heathcock 
 

Its:  City Manager 
 

 
 
 
 
 

Reference APNs: _______________________ 

 
Project: ______________________ 

11 of 35
ITEM 3B









15 of 35
ITEM 3B



16 of 35
ITEM 3B



CERTIFICATE OF ACCEPTANCE 
(Government Code 27281) 

 
 
 
 
This is to certify that the City Council of the City of Colfax, State of California, on the 

 

____ day of _________________ 2018, by resolution n o . __________  regularly passed and 

entered in the minutes of said Council, did hereby accept, the interest in real property conveyed 

by the grant of easement dated _____________________, granted by_____________________, 

to the City of Colfax, a municipal corporation in the County of Placer, State of California and the 

grantee consents to recordation thereof by its duly authorized officer. 

 

Dated: ______________ 

 

By: _______________________________________ 

 Wes Heathcock 
 

Its:  City Manager 
 

 
 
 
 
 

Reference APNs: _______________________ 

 
Project: ______________________ 

ITEM 3B



Exhibit C 18 of 35
ITEM 3B



Exhibit C
ITEM 3B



Exhibit C 20 of 35
ITEM 3B



Exhibit C 21 of 35
ITEM 3B



Exhibit C 22 of 35
ITEM 3B



CERTIFICATE OF ACCEPTANCE 
(Government Code 27281) 

 
 
 
 
This is to certify that the City Council of the City of Colfax, State of California, on the 

 

____ day of _________________ 2018, by resolution n o . __________  regularly passed and 

entered in the minutes of said Council, did hereby accept, the interest in real property conveyed 

by the grant of easement dated _____________________, granted by_____________________, 

to the City of Colfax, a municipal corporation in the County of Placer, State of California and the 

grantee consents to recordation thereof by its duly authorized officer. 

 

Dated: ______________ 

 

By: _______________________________________ 

 Wes Heathcock 
 

Its:  City Manager 
 

 
 
 
 
 

Reference APNs: _______________________ 

 
Project: ______________________ 

Exhibit C 23 of 35
ITEM 3B



24 of 35
ITEM 3B





ITEM 3B



27 of 35
ITEM 3B



28 of 35
ITEM 3B





30 of 35
ITEM 3B



31 of 35
ITEM 3B



ITEM 3B





34 of 35
ITEM 3B



CERTIFICATE OF ACCEPTANCE 
(Government Code 27281) 

 
 
 
 
This is to certify that the City Council of the City of Colfax, State of California, on the 

 

____ day of _________________ 2018, by resolution n o . __________  regularly passed and 

entered in the minutes of said Council, did hereby accept, the interest in real property conveyed 

by the grant of easement dated _____________________, granted by_____________________, 

to the City of Colfax, a municipal corporation in the County of Placer, State of California and the 

grantee consents to recordation thereof by its duly authorized officer. 

 

Dated: ______________ 

 

By: _______________________________________ 

 Wes Heathcock 
 

Its:  City Manager 
 

 
 
 
 
 

Reference APNs: _______________________ 

 
Project: ______________________ 

35 of 35
ITEM 3B



 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 
  
 

FOR THE MARCH 14, 2018 CITY COUNCIL MEETING 
 

FROM: Wes Heathcock, City Manager 

PREPARED BY: Staff 

DATE: March 7, 2018 

SUBJECT: Sierra Vista Community Center  Donation 
 

 N/A  X FUNDED   UN-FUNDED AMOUNT: $50 FROM FUND:  General Fund 

 

RECOMMENDED ACTION:  Authorize donating $50 to organizers of the Chocolate, Wine and Art 
Indulgence event at Sierra Vista Community Center from the Council budget for Economic Development 
– Event Support. 

 

SUMMARY 
 

The City Council of the City of Colfax traditionally donates funds to serve as seed money for certain events 

each year.  There are monies remaining in in the FY2017-2018 budget for economic development – event 

support.   

Council heard a presentation from Sharon Conners regarding the Sierra Vista Community Center’s 

Chocolate, Wine and Art Indulgence event which will be held on April 28, 2018.  This annual event is the 

main fund-raiser for the Community Center.  Ms. Conners requested the Council consider donating $50 

towards the purchase of an over-the-street banner to be used each year to advertise the event.  Council 

directed staff to place her request on the next meeting agenda. 

RECOMMENDATION 
 

Staff recommends authorizing the donation of $50 to support the Sierra Vista Community Center’s 

fundraising efforts. 



1 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 
  
 

FOR THE MARCH 14, 2018 COUNCIL MEETING 
 

FROM: Wes Heathcock, City Manager 

PREPARED BY: Lorraine Cassidy, City Clerk 

DATE March 7 2018 

SUBJECT: Agreement with Vision Quest for Information Technology Services 
 

 N/A  X FUNDED   UN-FUNDED 

AMOUNT: 

$17,928 Annually 

$3,200 Web design 

FROM FUNDS:  

100, 572, 250, 560 

 

RECOMMENDED ACTION:  Adopt Resolution 17-2018 authorizing the City Manager to enter into a 

professional services agreement with Vision Quest Information Solutions Inc for a three year term with 

an option to renew for an additional two years.   
 

DISCUSSION AND SUMMARY 
 

In July of 2017, the City had an urgent need for information technology (IT) services.  Vision Quest Information 
Solutions Inc. was strongly recommended by neighboring jurisdictions.  Staff contacted Vision Quest and the 
company responded immediately to provide the services needed.  Vision Quest has continued to deliver 
commendable IT services on an on-call basis since July.  Staff believes it is in the City’s best interest to continue 
with Vision Quest and formalize the relationship with an extended contract.  Vision Quest’s “Gold Plan” will 
provide unlimited services on an as-needed basis for a flat rate of $1,494/month or $17,928 annually.   
 

In addition the City’s website is in need of an overhaul.  Currently all updates to information on the website 
must be handled by IT staff.  It is uncommon for the City Clerk to need to rely on other staff to upload agendas 
and other required, time sensitive notifications.  A new website would allow on-site staff to keep the website 
information current.  Also, new laws governing website accessibility have recently gone into effect 
demonstrating the need for a flexible website format to remain in compliance as regulations change.  Staff 
solicited several IT firms for quotes to upgrade the website and received three responses (See attached): 
 

Company Design Hosting and Maintenance Support per hour 

CivicPlus $6,000-$9,000 N/A N/A 
Municode $4,000 $1,500 annually $125/hour 

Vision Quest $3200 Included in Gold Plan $50/hour 
 

FISCAL IMPACT 
 

Staff recommends Council authorize contracting with Vision Quest for IT services and website design, hosting 
and maintenance for three years with an option to renew in years 4 and 5.  These services were previously 
provided by staff and are now being handled via contracted services with the same allocation. 

 
Attachment:   

1. Resolution 17 -2018 
2. Quotes 
3. Contract and Scope of Services 

1 of 40



 

 

City of Colfax 
City Council 

 

Resolution № 17-2018 
 

AUTHORIZING THE CITY MANAGER TO ENTER INTO A PROFESSIONAL 
SERVICES AGREEMENT WITH VISION QUEST INFORMATION SOLUTIONS INC 

FOR INFORMATION TECHNOLOGY SERVICES FOR A THREE YEAR TERM 
WITH AN OPTION TO RENEW FOR AN ADDITIONAL TWO YEARS. 

 

WHEREAS, the City is in need of professional information technology (IT) services 
and an update of the City website to ensure regulatory compliance; and, 

 

WHEREAS, Vision Quest Information Solutions Inc. (Vision Quest) has successfully 
provided IT services on an on-call basis and staff recommends continuing services from 
Vision Quest; and, 

 

WHEREAS, staff has solicited three bids for website design and staff has determined 
the proposal from Vision Quest best meets the needs of the City. 

  

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED that the City Council of the City of Colfax as 
follows: 

1.  The City Manager is authorized on behalf of the City to execute a contract with Vision 
Quest Information Solutions for IT Services and Website Design, Hosting and Development in 
the form attached to this resolution. 

2.  To execute all other documents necessary to perform the City’s obligations under the 
contract. 

3.  To appropriate encumber and expend sufficient funds to pay all amounts due and 
payable by the City under that contract. 

 

THE FOREGOING RESOLUTION WAS DULY AND REGULARLY ADOPTED at the 
Regular Meeting of the City Council of the City of Colfax held on the 14th day of March 2018 
by the following vote of the Council: 
 

AYES: 

NOES: 

ABSTAIN: 

ABSENT: 

_____________________________ 
        Will Stockwin, Mayor 
ATTEST: 
 

____________________________________ 
Lorraine Cassidy, City Clerk 



3 of 40



 
 

Website Redesign, Hosting, and Support 
for the City of Colfax, California 
 

Exhibit A 
 

 
 
 

 
 

 

 

 

 

Brian Gilday 

415 North State St Suite 138 Lake Oswego, OR 97034 
971-206-7082  bgilday@municode.com   
 

 

 

4 of 40

mailto:bgilday@municode.com




 

 
 

CONTENTS 
 

Qualifications ............................................................................................................................................. 1 

References and Design Examples................................................................................................................. 2 

Website Features ........................................................................................................................................ 4 

Project Timeline and Approach ................................................................................................................... 6 

Project Costs ............................................................................................................................................. 11 

Payment Schedule .................................................................................................................................... 11 

 

 

6 of 40





 

P a g e  | 2 

REFERENCES AND DESIGN EXAMPLES 

Standard Designs 
Our standard designs come as part of our base price and are a great option for those who want a professional, 

mobile friendly design without the added expense of custom graphic design work.  You choose from one of our 

standard layouts and still get to customize the color palette and background photos.  

Aurora Oregon 

https://www.ci.aurora.or.us  

Population: 1,003 

Kelly Richardson, City 
Recorder/Clerk 

503-678-1283 

recorder@ci.aurora.or.us  
 

 
 

Senoia Georgia 
https://senoia.com  
Population: 3,328 
 
Debby Volk, City Clerk 
770-599-3679 
dvolk@senoia.com   

 
 

Onancock Virginia 
http://www.onancock.com  
Population: 1,263 
 
Bill Kerbin, Town Manager 
757-787-3363 
wkerbin@onancock.com   

 
 

Polson Montana 
https://www.cityofpolson.com  
Population: 4,488 
 
Kyle Roberts, City Planner 
406-883-8213 
cityplanner@cityofpolson.com   

 
 

 

  

8 of 40

https://www.ci.aurora.or.us/
mailto:recorder@ci.aurora.or.us
https://senoia.com/
mailto:dvolk@senoia.com
http://www.onancock.com/
mailto:wkerbin@onancock.com
https://www.cityofpolson.com/
mailto:cityplanner@cityofpolson.com


https://www.naplesgov.com/
mailto:prambosk@naplesgov.com
http://greenacresfl.gov/
mailto:mpowery@ci.greenacres.fl.us
http://www.greatfallsmt.net/
http://www.ci.mcminnville.or.us/
mailto:scott.burke@mcminnvilleoregon.gov


 

P a g e  | 4 

WEBSITE FEATURES 

Municode WEB was designed for local governments by experts in local government. It utilizes Drupal, an open 

source platform that powers millions of websites and is supported by an active, diverse, and global 

community.  We are the Drupal experts for local government! 

Key Base Features 
 Responsive Mobile Friendly Design 

 Simple Page Editor 

 Best-in-Class Search Engine 

 ADA/Section 508 Compliance 

 Social Media Integration 

 Unlimited Online Fillable Forms 

 Emergency Alerts 

 Meeting Agendas/Minutes/Videos 

 Event Calendar 

 Page Versioning / Audit Trail 

Additional Base Features 
 Web Page Categories - create a page once, 

have it show up in multiple places 

 Department Micro-sites (sites-within-a-site) 

 Rotating Banners and Headline Articles 

 Online Job Postings 

 Online Bid/RFP Postings 

 Photo Album Slideshows 

 Google Maps Integration 

 Resource/Document Center 

 Image auto-scaling and resizing 

 Site Metrics (Google Analytics) 

 Content Scheduling (Publish Today, 

Unpublish Tomorrow) 

 Unlimited User logins 

 Unlimited Content 

 Word-like WYSIWYG Editor 

 Online Payments 

 Latest News / Press Releases 

 Anti-spam controls 

 Email Harvesting Protection 

 Broken Link Finder 

 Dynamic Sitemap 

 Support for Windows, Mac, Linux 

 Video integration (YouTube, Vimeo, etc.) 

 Client owns rights to all data 

 Organization/Staff Directory 

 Frequently Asked Questions (FAQs) 

 Ordinances and Resolutions 

 Google Translate  

 Share This Button (Facebook/Twitter) 

 Secure Pages / SSL 

 Printer Friendly Pages 

 RSS Feeds Inbound/Outbound 

Optional Features 
 Email Subscriptions / Notifications  

 Parks and Trails Directory 

 Projects Directory  

 Property Locator (Commercial/Industrial) 

 Business Directory  

 Specialty sub-site graphic designs  

 Design refresh every 4 years 

 Custom development 

  

10 of 40



 

P a g e  | 5 

Online Payments (Municode PAY) 
Municode PAY is a highly flexible and comprehensive electronic payment solution that lets you collect and 
process payments from multiple types and channels – quickly and efficiently. Once deployed within your 
organization, you will be able to accept payment via the web or through your own customer service agents.  

Easy for your community to use 
Provide your residents and business owners the payment options that empower them to pay you anytime, 
anywhere, the way that makes the most sense for them.  

• Online quick pay option 

• Mobile payments & alerts 

• Choose from multiple funding sources: Credit Card, Debit Card, Electronic Check 

Easy for you to manage 
Your staff will have 24/7 access to the industry’s most comprehensive administrative portal to provide 
customer support before, during and after payment processing, as well as reporting and other tools for 
overall payment management. 

 Schedule or cancel payments on citizen’s behalf 

 Capture and process payments in real-time or batch modes 

 Flexible settlement and reconciliation options tailored to your needs 

 Complete accounting and settlement functions that integrate with finance and general ledger systems 

 Role and privilege based security rights to manage staff from multiple departments one platform 

 Streamline financial processes including collection, payment & settlement  

 Comprehensive reporting reports exportable in multiple formats (HTML, PDF, CSV and Excel) 

Flexible Pricing Model 
We will work with you to find the right pricing model for your needs. Whether it is a similar citizen 
convenience fee model like the one you are utilizing today or a more aggressive municipal fee model to 
drive electronic payment adoption. For this proposal, we have included both the customer convenience 
fee model and municipal absorbed fee model for you to compare.  

Total Fee = Transaction Fees + Annual Service Fee 

Transaction Fees 

a) Municipal Absorbed Fee Model: $0.80 + merchant processing fees OR 
b) Citizen Convenience Fee Model: TBD - depends on type of payments 

 

Annual Service Fee only applies if < 365 transactions per year (1 per day average) 

a) >= 365 transactions per year - annual service fee waived 
b) < 365 transactions per year - $400 

  



 

P a g e  | 6 

PROJECT TIMELINE AND APPROACH 

The typical project takes from 3 to 6 months.  The high-level timeline below is an approximation.  We will 

finalize the schedule once we meet with you: 

Project Timeline Sample 

 

Client Responsibilities 
The client’s responsibility and the key to a smooth on-time deployment is providing the initial information and 

approving proofs quickly. 

 The Client will make available to Municode relevant images, photos, logos, colors, and other branding 

material as well as an inventory of existing applications, websites, and content at the start of this effort.  

The Client will create new content copy as needed. 

 The Client will assign a single point of contact for Municode to interact with that will be responsible for 

coordinating the schedules of other project stakeholders. 

 The Client will review any deliverables requiring formal approval within 5 business days and return all 

comments/issues at or before those 5 days have elapsed. 

 The Client will assign one person who will act as the "ultimate decision maker" in the case where 

consensus among the team cannot be reached.   

 The Client must agree to applicable terms of services for Google related services such as Google Analytics 

and Google Maps to access those features.  Municode is not responsible for Google’s decisions related to 

discontinuing services or changing current APIs. 

  

P
H

A
SE

S 

MONTH 1 MONTH 2 MONTH 3 MONTH 4 

Analyze and Confirm 

Requirements 

Hosting, Maintenance and Support 

Testing 

Train 

Design and Build 

Migrate Content 

GO-LIVE  



 

P a g e  | 7 

Project Phase Descriptions 

 
Deliverables 

Website Assessment:  
Municode will complete an analysis of your current website(s) to assess the 
existing navigation, features/functions, and quality of content.   

 Summary assessment 
sheet 

Organizational Overview Inventory/Survey:  
Municode will provide an organizational overview document for you to 
complete as part of this assessment. 

 Organization Survey 

Website Design Meeting:  
Municode will conduct a design meeting with a client-defined web advisory 
team.  We recommend the advisory team be limited to a maximum of 6 
members.  This design meeting will allow the website advisory team to provide 
input regarding the overall design of the new website, including the site 
branding as well as high-level site navigation.  This team will act as the initial 
review team for website design concepts.  In addition, this team will act as the 
final review team for the website before it is approved for go-live. 

 Website design 
specification sheet 
(graphic design and 
information / navigation 
design) 

 

 
Deliverables 

Design Concept Creation and Approval (Custom Designs):  
Municode will complete home page design concepts for the Home Page and 
inner pages.  These design concepts will incorporate all the graphical elements 
as well as the high-level sitemap.  You will select a winning concept after going 
through a series of iterative design revision meetings.  We allow for a total of 6 
revisions. 

 Design concepts 

 Finalized design 
(Photoshop PSD) 

Website Setup, Configure, and Customization:  
Municode will create a fully functional website that includes the functional 
elements described in this proposal.  As part of the website setup, Municode will 
finalize any remaining elements to the approved design and navigation. 

 Functional beta website 
with approved design 

 Content migration 

 

  

Phase 1: Analyze and Confirm Requirements 

Phase 2: Design and Build phase 

13 of 40







 

P a g e  | 10 

Maintenance and Customer Support 

  24x7 Customer support:    
We will provide you contact numbers to reach us 24x7x365 for catastrophic site issues. We will also be 
available from Monday to Friday 8AM-8PM EST via email and phone to handle routine website 
operation questions from staff. 

  Security upgrades:    
Municode will apply security upgrades to your solution’s core and contributed modules as they are 
published by drupal.org ensuring that your website stays secure.  Municode will perform security 
upgrades and other web server and website optimizations during off-hours, typically between the hours of 
12-3AM PST, if such work requires taking the website off-line.  We will provide at least 14 days’ notice for 
any non-emergency maintenance that requires down-time. 

   Site Monitoring and Site Recovery:   
Municode will install auto-monitoring software routines that continually monitor website performance 
and instantly alert us when problems occur.   We will act as soon as possible and no later than two hours 
after problems are detected. 

   Free feature upgrades:   
As we update our base Municode features, you receive those upgrades for FREE. 

  



 

P a g e  | 11 

 PROJECT COSTS 

Design, Development, and Implementation Phase 
 Fully functional Municode CMS with all base features  

 Responsive mobile-friendly website with standard design 

 Content migration: 25 standard pages and 5 years meeting minutes 

 Training: web teleconference, video training series, user guides  

$4,000 

  

Annual Hosting, Maintenance, and Customer Support 
 10GB disk space and up to 1 terabyte data transfer per month 

 99.9% up-time guarantee, telephone support 8AM-8PM Eastern 

 Email support with one-hour response time during working hours 

 Emergency 24x7 support 

 Up to 3 hours’ webinar refresher trainings per year 

$1,500/ year 
 

  

Additional Website Options 

 Custom Design       $2,500 

 Email Subscriptions / Notifications    $600 per year 

 Parks and Trails Directory     $200 per year 

 Projects Directory      $200 per year 

 Property Listings (Commercial/Industrial)   $200 per year 

 Business Directory      $200 per year 

 On-site visits (training, consultation, etc.)   $1500 day 1, $1000 per day (days 2+) 

 Custom Feature Development     $125 per hour or fixed bid quote 

PAYMENT SCHEDULE 

Traditional Payment Schedule 
 Year 1 

 Sign contract – 50% of project costs 

 Implement design and features – 50% project costs 

 Conduct training (site moved to production / annual support begins)

 Total 

 Years 2-5 
 Yr2 - $1500, Yr3 - $1500, Yr4 - $1500, Yr5 - $1575 

 
$2,000 
$2,000 
$1,500 
$5,500 

 Payment schedule will be adjusted accordingly based on selected optional features 

 Years 6+ hosting and support increases in accordance with the prevailing consumer price index (CPI) 

Interest Free Payment Schedule 
 2, 3, or 4-year interest-free payment plan available upon request 

 



T: 916-303-4025 http://vqis.net 

Proposal: 

Quote for 
Wordpress CMS* Website 

Created on 

Jan 26th, 2018 

Vision Ouest 
Information Solutions Inc. 

Page 1 of5 



T: 916·303·4025 http://vqis.net 

* Quote for Wordpress eMS Websites 

Design, build and implement a new website to replace the existing City of Colfax Website. 

Images are important with an image rotator prominent on the home page, the ability to assign a unique 
"hero" image to each individual page, and the ability to add images and image galleries within pages. 

The home page will have a section for news/announcements that will display from newest to oldest. After a 
certain number of announcements, they will drop off the homepage but still be accessible from a "view all" 
link that will link to the announcements page. The announcements page will have all past announcements 
listed form newest to oldest. Some announcements may need to remain at the top of the list for a while 
instead of dropping off to the home page. An option will be available to make an announcement "sticky", 
keeping it at the top of the list regardless of it's age until the "sticky" feature is turned off for that 
announcement. 

The website should be editable by City of Colfax staff. To that end, the website will be built on the 
WordPress content management system for its ease of use and wide adoption across the internet. Sure to it's 
flexibility and ease of use, Wordpress is the most widely used content management system on the internet. 
This means there are a lot of resources available for learning to use it or adding/removing features in the 
future. It also means that if the VisionQuest team airplane falls out of the sky one day, you will not have 
difficulty finding someone who can take over management of the website. 

Accessibility and ease of use will be key components of the website structure and navigation. It's important 
to note that regardless of what platform is used, some things are required of someone updating the website 
to make those updates accessible. These include things like filling out image descriptions for automated 
screen readers to read aloud to the visually impaired and making sure PDF files meet accessibility 
guidelines before they are uploaded to the site. 

Included: 
• Set up website on server 

• Update website framework with new visual styles and custom design 

a Create website header banner. 

• Includes text, gradients, basic textures and shapes. 

• Includes incorporating logo provided by customer. 

o Create Banner (rotating) 

• Cropping images provided by customer and placing them in the banner (up to lO) 

o Developing website layout in Word press 

• Includes changing positions, colors, spacing, size, etc. offramework elements. 

• Includes creating simple graphic backgrounds like linear gradients or repeating textures. 

Vision Ouest 
'nformatlon Solutions Inc. 

Page 20f5 









180315 Vision Quest ɀ IT Services Page 1 

 

AGREEMENT FOR CONSULTANT SERVICES 
 

THIS AGREEMENT is made and entered into on this 15 day of March, 2018 by and between 
the City of Colfax, a municipal corporation of the State of California ("City") and  
Vision Quest Information Solutions ɉȰConsultant").  
 

RECITALS 
 

A. The City desires to retain Consultant to provide the Services set forth in detail in 
Exhibit A and Exhibit B hereto (the "Services") subject to the terms and conditions 
of this Agreement. 

B. Consultant is duly licensed and sufficiently experienced to undertake and perform 
the Services in a skilled and workmanlike manner and desires to do so in 
accordance with the terms and conditions of this Agreement. 
  

Now, therefore, in consideration of the mutual covenants, promises and conditions set 
forth in this Agreement, the City and Consultant agree as follows: 
 
Section 1. Services 
 

Subject to the terms and conditions set forth in this Agreement, Consultant shall furnish 
and perform all of the Services described in detail in Exhibit A hereto and incorporated 
herein by this reference (the "Services") to the satisfaction of the City.  Consultant shall not 
perform any work exceeding the scope of the Services described in Exhibit A without prior 
written authorization from the City.  
 

Section 2. Time of Completion.  
 

Consultant's schedule for performance of the Services is set forth in Exhibit A hereto which 
is incorporated herein by this reference.  Consultant shall commence performance of the 
Services promptly upon receipt of written notice from the City to proceed.  The contract 
term is for three years with an option for a two year extension.  During the 
performance of the Services, Consultant shall provide the City with written progress 
reports at least once each month and at such additional intervals as City may from time to 
time request.  
 

Section 3. Compensation. 
 

A. Except as may otherwise be provided in Exhibit A or elsewhere in this Agreement or 
its exhibits, Consultant shall invoice City once each month for the Services 
performed during the preceding month.  Such invoices shall itemize all charges in 
such detail as may reasonably be required by City in the usual course of City 
business but shall include at least: 

ITEM 6A



180315 Vision Quest ɀ IT Services Page 2 

 

i. the date of performance of each of the Services,  
ii. identification of the person who performed the Services, 

iii. a detailed description of the Services performed on each date, 
iv. the hourly rate at which the Services on each date are charged, 
v. an itemization of all costs incurred and 

vi. the total charges for the Services for the month invoiced. 
  

As long as the Consultant performs the Services to the satisfaction of the City, the 
City shall pay the Consultant an all-inclusive compensation that shall not exceed the 
amount as detailed in Exhibit A except pursuant to an authorized written change 
order issued pursuant to Section 15 of this Agreement before the Services requiring 
additional compensation are performed. City shall pay Consultant no later than 
thirty (30) days after approval of the monthly invoice by City's staff. 

 
B. The Consultant's compensation for the Services shall be full compensation for all 

indirect and direct personnel, materials, supplies, equipment and services incurred 
by the Consultant and used in carrying out or completing the Services.  Payments 
shall be in accordance with the payment schedule established in Exhibit A or 
elsewhere in this Agreement or its exhibits. 

 

C. The City shall have the right to receive, upon request, documentation substantiating 
charges billed to the City pursuant to this Agreement.  The City shall have the right 
to perform an audit of the Consultant's relevant records pertaining to the charges. 

 

D. Any Services performed more than sixty (60) days prior to the date upon which they 
are invoiced to the City shall not be compensable.  

 

Section 4. Professional Ability; Standard of Quality. 
 
City has relied upon the professional training and ability of Consultant to perform the 
Services described in Exhibit A as a material inducement to enter into this Agreement. 
Consultant shall therefore provide properly skilled professional and technical personnel to 
perform all Services under this Agreement.  All Services performed by Consultant under 
this Agreement shall be in a skillful, workmanlike manner in accordance with applicable 
legal requirements and shall meet the standard of quality ordinarily to be expected of 
competent professionals in Consultant's field of expertise. 
 

Section 5. Indemnification. 
 

Consultant shall hold harmless and indemnify, including without limitation the cost to 
defend, the City and its officers, agents and employees from and against any and all claims, 
demands, damages, costs or liability that arise out of, or pertain to, or relate to the 
negligence, recklessness or willful misconduct of Consultant and/or its agents in the 

ITEM 6A
24 of 40



180315 Vision Quest ɀ IT Services Page 3 

 

performance of the Services. This indemnity does not apply to liability for damages for 
death or bodily injury to persons, injury to property, or other loss, arising from the sole 
negligence, willful misconduct or material defects in design by the City or its agents, 
servants employees or independent contractors other than Consultant who are directly 
responsible to the City, or arising from the active negligence of the City officers, agents, 
employees or volunteers  
 

Section 6. Insurance.  
 

Without limiting Consultant's indemnification obligations provided for above, Consultant 
shall take out before beginning performance of the Services and maintain at all times 
during the life of this Agreement the following policies of insurance with insurers 
possessing a Best rating of not less than A.  Consultant shall not allow any subcontractor, 
professional or otherwise, to commence work on any subcontract until all insurance 
required of the Consultant has also been obtained by the subcontractor.  
 

A. Workers' Compensation Coverage. Statutory Workers' Compensation insurance and 
Employer's Liability Insurance to cover its employees. In the alternative, Consultant 
may rely on a self-insurance program to meet its legal requirements as long as the 
program of self-insurance complies fully with the provisions of the California Labor 
Code.  Consultant shall also require all subcontractors, if such are authorized by the 
City, to similarly provide Workers' Compensation insurance as required by the 
Labor Code of the State of California for all of the subcontractor's employees.  All 
Workers' Compensation policies shall be endorsed with the provision that the 
insurance shall not be suspended, voided, or cancelled until thirty (30) days prior 
written notice has been provided to City by the insurer.  The Workers' 
Compensation insurance shall also contain a provision whereby the insurance 
company agrees to waive all rights of subrogation against the City and its elected or 
appointed officials, officers, agents, and employees for losses paid under the terms 
of such policy which arise from the Services performed by the insured for the City. 

 

B. General Liability Coverage. General liability insurance, including personal injury and 
property damage insurance for all activities of the Consultant and its 
subcontractors, if such are authorized by the City, arising out of or in connection 
with the Services.  The insurance shall be written on a comprehensive general 
liability form and include a broad form comprehensive general liability 
endorsement.  In the alternative, the City will accept, in satisfaction of these 
requirements, commercial general liability coverage which is equivalent to the 
comprehensive general liability form and a broad form comprehensive general 
liability endorsement.  The insurance shall be in an amount of not less than $1 
million combined single limit personal injury and property damage for each 
occurrence.  The insurance shall be occurrence based insurance.  General liability 
coverage written on a claims made basis shall not be acceptable absent prior 

ITEM 6A
25 of 40



180315 Vision Quest ɀ IT Services Page 4 

 

written authorization from the City.  
 

C. Automobile Liability Coverage. Automobile liability insurance covering bodily injury 
and property damage for all activities of the Consultant arising out of or in 
connection with this Agreement, including coverage for owned, hired and non-
owned vehicles, in an amount of not less than $1 million combined single limit for 
each occurrence.  

 

D. Policy Endorsements. Each general liability and automobile liability insurance policy 
shall be endorsed with the following provisions:  

 

1. The City, and its elected or appointed officials, employees and agents shall be 
named as insureds or additional insureds with regard to damages and 
defenses of claims arising from activities performed by or on behalf of the 
Consultant. 
 

2. The insurance afforded by each policy shall apply separately to each insured 
who is seeking coverage or against whom a claim is made or a suit is brought, 
except with respect to the insurer's limits of liability. 
 

3. The insurance shall be primary insurance as respects the City and its elected 
or appointed officers, officials, employees and agents. Any other insurance 
maintained by the City or its elected or appointed officers, officials, 
employees, agents or volunteers shall be in excess of this insurance and shall 
not contribute with it. 
 

4. The insurance shall not be suspended, voided, cancelled, or reduced in 
coverage or in limits except after thirty (30) days prior written notice has 
been provided to the City. 
 

5. Any failure to comply with the reporting requirements of any policy shall not 
affect coverage provided to the City, its elected or appointed officers, officials, 
employees, or agents.  

 
E. Professional Liability Coverage. If required by the City, Consultant shall also take out 

and maintain professional liability, errors and omissions insurance in an amount not 
less than $1 million.  The professional liability insurance policy shall be endorsed 
with a provision stating that it shall not be suspended, voided, cancelled, or reduced 
in coverage or in limits except after thirty (30) days written notice has been 
provided to the City.  

 
 
 

ITEM 6A
26 of 40













180315 Vision Quest ɀ IT Services Page 10 

 

Section 21. Time of the Essence. 
 

Time is of the essence in the performance of the Services.  The Consultant will perform its 
Services with due and reasonable diligence consistent with sound professional practices 
and shall devote such time to the performance of the Services as may be necessary for their 
timely completion. 
 

Section 22. Written Notification. 
 

Except as otherwise specified in this Agreement, any notice, demand, request, consent, 
approval or communications that either party desires or is required to give to the other 
party shall be in writing and either served personally or sent by first class mail, postage 
prepaid and addressed as follows. Either party may change its address by notifying the 
other party in writing of the change of address.  Notice shall be deemed communicated 
within two business days from the time of mailing if mailed within the State of California as 
provided in this Section.  
 
If to City:  City of Colfax  
   33 S. Main Street  
   Colfax, CA  95713  
 

If to Consultant:  Vision Quest  
   PO Box 455 
   Loomis, CA  95650  
 

Section 23. Execution. 
 

This Agreement may be executed in original counterparts, each of which shall constitute 
one and the same instrument and shall become binding upon the parties when at least one 
original counterpart is signed by both parties hereto. In proving this Agreement, it shall not 
be necessary to produce or account for more than one such counterpart. 
 

Section 24. Successors.  
 
This Agreement shall be binding on and inure to the benefit of the respective parties hereto 
except to the extent of any contrary provision in this Agreement. 
 
Section 25. Attorney's Fees.  
 
If any party to this Agreement commences legal proceedings to enforce any of its terms or 
to recover damages for its breach, the prevailing party shall be entitled to recover its 
ÒÅÁÓÏÎÁÂÌÅ ÁÔÔÏÒÎÅÙȭÓ ÆÅÅÓȟ ÃÏÓÔs and the expenses of expert witnesses, including any such 
fees costs and expenses incurred on appeal. 

ITEM 6A
32 of 40









ITEM 6A
36 of 40





ITEM 6A
38 of 40



ITEM 6A
39 of 40



ITEM 6A


	00A 180314 Agenda
	03A Minutes February 28, 2018
	03B Village Oaks Easements
	180314 SR Village Oaks
	Resolution 16-2018 Village Oaks Easements
	Exh A EVA
	Exh B VO Sewer
	Exh C SOE Sewer
	Exh D PTP Sewer
	Exh E PUE

	03C SVCC Donation
	06A Vision Quest
	180314 SR Vision Quest Contract
	Resolution 17-2018 Vision Quest IT Contract
	Civic Plus Proposal
	Municode Website Quote
	Colfax Website Proposal
	Vision Quest IT Services Agreement
	Exh A Colfax IT Scope
	Exh B Colfax Website Scope




